






 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 20, 2010 

1



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 
BOARD MEETING                           STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                                          5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 
                                                       DECEMBER 20, 2010 
 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 

E. Routine Matters 
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – December 6, 2010 
2. *Approval of Bills 
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Showcase: Fall Sports and National Certified Teachers 
2. Superintendent’s Comments 
3. Board Comments/Announcements 
4. Report from Student Representatives 

 
G. Unfinished Business: 

 
H. New Business 

1. Approval of Board Members to attend the NSBA Federal Relations Network (FRN) Conference 
2. *Approval to Delete 3240 – Business – Land Transfer To and From the School District 
3. *Approval to Delete Rule 3240.1 – Business – Land Transfer Into or Out of the School District 
4. First Reading Policy 3510 – Support Services – Operations – Security - Locks 
5. First Reading Policy 3517 – Business - Injury Prevention Program 
6. Approval of Rule 5400.3 – Pupil Services - Discipline of Students under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

of 1973 
7. *Reaffirm Policy 5480 – Pupil Services –  Search and Seizure 
8. *Reaffirm Rule 5480.1 – Pupil Services – Search and Seizure 
9. *Reaffirm Rule 5480.2 – Pupil Services – Searches by Sniffer Dogs 
10. Approval of Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of Absence, Voluntary Separation(s), Resignation Notification 

Incentive Program (RNI), and New Hire(s) 
 

I. Reports 
1. Risk Management Report 
2. Building Site Plans 
3. Legislation 

 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 

Agenda 
December 20, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 
J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 10, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

2. PDK Dinner on Wednesday, January 12, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at the Henry Doorly Zoo Treetop Restaurant 
3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 17, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 24, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 7, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 14, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 21, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 7, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 14, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 21, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a 
request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items 
may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

3



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  
BOARD MEETING        STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                            5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
                                                          DECEMBER 20, 2010 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
A. Call to Order 
 
 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 
 
*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – 

December 6, 2010 (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 
 
*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See 

enclosure.) 
 
F.1.  Showcase:  Fall Sports and National Certified Teachers 
 
F.2.  Superintendent’s Comments 
 
F.3.  Board Comments/Announcements 
 
F.4.  Report from Student Representatives 
 
H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Board Members: Mike Kennedy and 

Linda Poole to attend the NSBA Federal Relations Network Conference. (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.2.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Delete Policy 3240 – Business – Land 

Transfer To and From the School District (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Delete Rule 3240.1 – Business – Land 

Transfer Into or Out of the School District (See enclosure.) 
 
H.4. First Reading of Policy 3510 – Business – Security – Buildings and Grounds – Keys (See enclosure.) 
 
H.5. First Reading of Policy 3517 – Business – Injury Prevention Program (See enclosure.) 
 
H.6. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 5400.3 – Pupil Services – 

Discipline of Students under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.7. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Reaffirm Policy 5480 – Pupil Services – 

Search and Seizure (See enclosure.) 
 
 
 

4



Administrative Memorandum 
December 20, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 
*H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 5480.1 Pupil Services – Search 

and Seizure  (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 5480.2 Pupil Services – 

Searcher by Sniffer Dogs (See enclosure.) 
 
 
H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of 

Absence, Voluntary Separation(s), Resignation Notification Incentive Program (RNI), and New Hire(s) (See 
enclosures.) 

 
I.  Reports: 

1. Risk Management 
2. Building Site Plans 
3. Legislation  

 
J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 10, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

2. PDK Dinner on Wednesday, January 12, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at the Henry Doorly Zoo Treetop Restaurant 
3. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 17, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 24, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 7, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 14, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 21, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 7, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 
9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 14, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 21, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a 
request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 
L.  Adjournment All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single 

motion.  Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State 
of Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:30 p.m., Monday, December 6, 2010, at 
the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.   
 

Present: Michael Pate, Dave Anderson, Linda Poole, Brad Burwell, and  Mike Kennedy 
 
Absent: Julie Kannas 
 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on December 3, 2010; a 
copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the 
Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to 
these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of 
Education of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to 
the attendance of the public. 
 
 
Mr. Pate called the meeting to order and announced the public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for 
public inspection.  Mr. Pate asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken and members present were: Mike Pate, Dave Anderson, Linda Poole, Mike Kennedy, and 
Brad Burwell.  Absent was Julie Kannas. 
 
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson, to excuse Julie Kannas from the meeting, upon roll call 
vote, Linda Poole, Dave Anderson and Mike Kennedy voted aye.  Brad Burwell abstained.  Mike Pate voted nay.  
Motion carried.  
  
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve the Board of Education Minutes of November 
15, 2010, approve the bills, and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File, upon roll call vote, all member 
voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Employees for the Month of December were Mark Nelson, engineer at Andersen Middle School, and Janet 
Pelster, special education behavior specialist at the Young Adult Program. 
 
Superintendent’s Comments: 
 

1.  Just a reminder that winter break begins on December 22, 2010 and students return on January 5, 
2011.   

 
2. Met with Senator Adams on the potential of state aid, which has been well reported in the 

newspaper.  In the process of working toward the Superintendent’s goal of coming up with worst 
case scenario’s, and probable budget scenarios for the next two years.  We are waiting for the 
reports to come out, which the speaker has indicated should be in a couple of weeks. 

 
3. The committee meeting topic in January will be a discussion on the budget process.  The whole 

budgeting process has been moved up with program budgeting booklets going out today.  On 
Monday, January 10, 2011 will be the first board meeting. 

 
 

6



Board of Education Minutes 
December 20, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 

4. Three board members will provide an orientation session for Pat Ricketts on Friday, December 
10, 2010.  Mr. Ricketts will meet with Dr. Lutz for an orientation session on Wednesday, 
December 15, 2010.  

 
5. Dr. Lutz thanked Brad Burwell for all of his years of service to the Millard Public Schools, and 

also in transitioning into the Learning Community, which was greatly appreciated, and by all staff 
members. 

  
Board Comments: 
 
Mike Kennedy thanked Brad Burwell for his service on the Learning Community.  Brad represented Millard’s 
interests to fullest extent. He put in many hours of his personal time to be on Learning Community.  
 
Dave Anderson thanked Brad Burwell for his 13 ½ years of service and all of his time, dedication, and his 
commitment to the Millard Public Schools.  Mr. Anderson said that Brad was a mentor to him when he came on 
the board and he will always appreciate Brad answering questions and helping to get Mr. Anderson up to speed on 
the board.  Mr. Anderson said he enjoyed very much working with Mr. Burwell, and thanked him for all he had 
done for the kids in Millard.  
 
Mr. Anderson also congratulated and thanked Mike Pate for being the new member of Sub-District 4, which is 
Elkhorn and Millard, on the Learning Community board. 
 
Linda Poole thanked Brad Burwell for all of his years of service on the board.  He has done an exemplary job, and 
has been the most dedicated and always visible board member.  All of the tough decisions were made with the 
kids in mind.  She said thank you again for everything he did for kids, and everyone in Millard. 
 
Mike Pate said thank you to Brad Burwell.  Mr. Pate said he has been very active in board service and in the 
schools and around the community.  He has always been very active in the DECA program.  Mr. Pate explained 
that Mr. Burwell was a leader in the bond issue that passed for $89 million dollars several years ago.  He has 
always done what is best for the kids of Millard.   
 
Brad Burwell wanted to thank everyone present at the meeting and those within the Millard community.  He 
thanked current and past board members.  He said all board members are good leaders in their own profession, so 
he said, at the end of the day the board was always together as a board on the decisions that were made for the 
District.   
 
Mr. Burwell thanked the administrators and teachers, and he said they are why Millard is so successful.  They all 
do whatever it takes to make sure the schools and classrooms are served at all times.  He is very proud of all the 
teachers and administrators for all of their hard work.  He thanked Dr. Lutz and said it was great working with 
him, and it has been a pleasure watching his leadership. 
 
Mr. Burwell said he probably saw 20,000 kids graduate from Millard.  He said one of the great things about 
Millard is that no matter if the student is in the top 10 percent, the bottom 10 percent, or if the student has 
disabilities the district cares and is proud of all of their students.  
 
 

7



Board of Education Minutes 
December 20, 2010 
Page 3 
 
 
He said he received a nice note from an administrator, which had a hand written note saying “thank you for 
making this a better place.”  Mr. Burwell said that was his goal as a board member to make Millard a better place 
for students, teachers, and a better place for the community.  He said he is very confident that this district will 
move forward with the great leadership of the current board, and with the new board member Patrick Ricketts.  
 
He said he and his wife have two daughters who graduated from Millard.  They attended college with one having 
her master’s degree and the other working on her masters. This is what they hoped for, that their daughters would 
be contributing members of society, and this is what Millard does for all of the students in Millard, to make them 
a contributing member of society. 
 
Mr. Burwell said it has been great and thanked everyone for their support. 
 
Mike Pate presented a plaque to Mr. Burwell and read a resolution about his service to the District. 
 
Alison Brokke, student representative from Millard West High School, Isis Hernandez, student representative 
from Millard South High School, and Jeff Story, student representative from Millard North High School updated 
the board of academic and athletic activities which have occurred at their respective high school in the last few 
weeks. 
 
Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve that the board receive and file the FYE10 Audit 
Report as submitted by the Orizon CPAs LLC, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the Professional Services Contract with Mueller 
Robak LLC, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve the Guidelines for Transfer within District for 
2011-2012 School Year, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Rule 5100.7 – Pupil Services – Enrollment of 
Children in Pre-Kindergarten (Pre-K) Programs, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Rule 5100.8 – Pupil Services – Enrollment of 
Students: Learning Community Open Enrollment, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve Rule 5110.2 – Pupil Services – Pre-
Kindergarten Transfer of Children within the District, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve the proposed tuition increase for 2011 Summer 
School, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, that approval be given to the construction of an addition onto 
Reeder Elementary School as submitted, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Personnel Actions: Leave of Absence: Janet 
Vandeventer, Resignation: Jessica Becker, Voluntary Separations: Janet Vandeventer, Dr. Carol C. Newton, Rose 
Mary Campney, Barbara J. Jens, Susan J. Wooster, Sheila D. Bresley, Carol S. Groseth, Susan K. Bose, Cynthia  

8





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
December 20, 2010 

 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 20, 2010

Date: 12/15/2010

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651319553 5,798.95 
AMERICAN STRING TEACHERS ASSN132542319554 255.00 
BRADLEY UNIVERSITY106105319555 606.00 
FIERCE INC138146319556 6,912.50 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL065443319557 150.00 
SHON J MOSSER138437319558 75.00 
TORY J NIXON138436319559 30.00 
PETTY CASH/BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL132346319560 133.74 
SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE136870319564 9,450.00 
ROADWAY EXPRESS INC135996319566 989.61 
AATSP131405319568 126.00 
AMERICAN STRING TEACHERS ASSN132542319570 99.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646319571 228.37 
BLAKE HIGH SCHOOL108425319572 190.00 
BRAD BURWELL106110319573 61.99 
KATHY DANIELSON135885319575 165.00 
DOWLING HIGH SCHOOL106879319576 825.00 
DOWLING HIGH SCHOOL106879319577 475.00 
DOWLING HIGH SCHOOL106879319578 390.00 
DOWLING HIGH SCHOOL106879319579 100.00 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773319580 6,992.56 
WILMA KUHLMAN134393319583 165.00 
LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL106116319584 438.00 
MIDLAND UNIVERSITY138462319585 200.00 
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL INC138465319586 371.25 
MIKE PATE071753319587 310.00 
PETTY CASH/AUTISM137440319588 191.82 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446319591 297.00 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446319592 10,048.00 
SHARON M EBLEN137806319606 55.27 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL065425319608 461.60 
JILL M ANDERSON131265319609 41.24 
NANCY G ANDERSON012896319610 79.25 
JENNIFER ANKER138440319611 75.00 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083319612 71.99 
RAYMOND J SAVARD136956319613 3,000.00 
KRISTIN BAINBRIDGE138441319614 50.00 
JULIE A BARTHOLOMEW133353319615 414.36 
SHARENE N BIERBAUM138442319616 15.89 
ALEXANDER LYNN BLACK137222319617 150.00 
CASSANDRA BLAKELY137981319618 60.00 
SCOTT M BOHLKEN133891319619 42.68 
RACHEL A BOTTLINGER138444319620 218.09 
CAITLIN CEDFELDT136560319622 50.00 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420319623 4,239.00 
ASHLEY CHERRY138445319624 50.00 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 20, 2010

Date: 12/15/2010

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
CONTROLTEMP INC132720319626 186.00 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893319627 38.48 
MOLLY DANIELL138446319628 50.00 
ABIGAIL DAWDY138416319629 140.00 
DEEP ROCK WATER130339319630 37.05 
ANDREW S DEFREECE106713319631 333.12 
ANNE DELUCA136493319632 90.00 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473319633 741.40 
SHARON G EPSTEIN131416319635 18.99 
NATALIE FECH136451319636 100.00 
ABBY FITCH136494319637 100.00 
PATRICK FOX136447319638 75.00 
DEBORAH M GLEICH-BOPE138443319639 28.06 
MICHELLE R HALL134436319640 270.93 
JAMES R HANLON136805319641 286.19 
RABECCA M HARRIS138467319642 120.00 
NICOLAS A HERINK137206319644 110.00 
JORDAN HICKS138447319645 50.00 
JENA M HOEPPNER137857319646 50.00 
MATTHEW D HUBER135874319647 50.00 
JAMES DAVID HUNT138448319648 60.00 
HY-VEE INC133397319650 677.53 
HY-VEE INC049851319651 1,529.88 
HY-VEE INC049850319652 1,717.19 
IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS MGMNT INC133423319653 1,713.92 
JOY MWENDWA KATHURIMA138449319654 50.00 
JEANNE M KELLEY056278319655 136.75 
DANIEL J KELLY138420319656 50.00 
JAMIE KOSELUK138422319657 50.00 
KRISTEN KOSELUK137191319658 50.00 
GREGORY J LECLEIR JR137834319659 140.00 
DAWN M LINDER138450319660 247.77 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758319661 28.49 
CAMERON LOGSDON138451319663 60.00 
MICHAELA LUCAS138452319664 50.00 
CLARE MAAKESTAD137819319665 170.00 
CAMERON MARTIN136020319666 225.00 
SAMANTHA MEISTER134256319667 50.00 
IVEN MENDOZA138453319668 120.00 
MID-AMERICA COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS064834319669 50.00 
MILLARD LIONS CLUB065382319670 60.00 
MILLARD LIONS CLUB065382319671 180.00 
FERNANDO A MONTEJANO138469319672 180.00 
TRENT M MONZINGO107708319673 23.63 
MATTHEW NAYLOR135835319675 59.56 
NANCY G NELSON131550319676 1,386.89 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 20, 2010

Date: 12/15/2010

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ANDREW D NENEMAN137269319677 50.00 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843319678 889.22 
NOBBIES INC069675319679 38.94 
MAUREEN P ORD132779319680 67.64 
CYNTHIA A ORSO134261319681 20.63 
DEREK OUTSON137876319682 50.00 
MATT OWENS135896319683 120.00 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288319686 11,050.00 
MEGAN L PETERSON138230319687 33.89 
PHI DELTA KAPPA072400319688 186.00 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040319689 10,000.00 
CHRISTINA PREUSS109845319690 39.07 
QWEST090673319692 112.25 
SHAWN RETHERFORD138454319694 50.00 
PATRICIA A RITCHIE079198319695 17.07 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477319696 116.70 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630319697 210.32 
SARAH SCOTT138455319698 26.79 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851319699 420.00 
DAN SIMMONS138456319700 50.00 
DAVID SKOGLUND134247319702 75.00 
MICHAELA SMITH134353319703 50.00 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES101476319704 96,096.71 
JAMIE R STINSON137093319705 25.58 
JEFFREY C STORY130622319707 560.00 
MICHAEL SUTHERLAND138412319708 225.00 
FELICIA SYNOWICKI135094319709 50.00 
ABBIE SYREK138457319710 60.00 
RYAN SYREK138458319711 60.00 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242319712 502.78 
ELIZABETH URRUTIA138459319713 50.00 
US POSTAL SERVICE090625319714 370.00 
KRISTIN VAN WYNGAARDN138460319715 50.00 
BARBARA N WALLER093008319716 163.59 
ALLYSON WALLIN138461319717 50.00 
TAMARA J WILLIAMS136322319718 61.28 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491319719 109.07 
YOUNG & WHITE096200319720 33,133.53 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855319721 82.28 
US POSTMASTER134127319737 5,000.00 

227,414.33 Total for GENERAL FUND
SARAH J BANIK13788922734 118.15 
DAMON BARBER13833122735 97.30 
NICOLE E BROM13773122736 17.38 
JAYCE BUSCH13813722737 20.85 
MARKAIL CHANNEL13827022738 170.28 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 20, 2010

Date: 12/15/2010

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MADELEINE R COLBERT13716022739 20.85 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689322740 12.82 
RAFAEL DIAZ13699922741 191.13 
JASON FIGGINS13803922742 52.13 
JUSTIN FIGGINS13804022743 52.13 
MARLEY J FLEMING13700022744 41.70 
JARED A GARDNER13789022745 34.75 
CODY M GELVIN13813822746 20.85 
ENCORE ONE LLC13598322747 731.27 
GLASSMASTERS INC10666022748 42.75 
PRESTON A GOCKE13773022749 34.75 
DREW A GRANDGENETT13846622750 20.85 
ANDERS J HANSON13840322751 15.64 
SAMUEL A PULLEN INC01028022752 3,928.25 
JOHN L HOBZA13819522753 33.50 
DEBRA J HOPKINSON13606522754 8.68 
DEVAN JAMES13833322755 50.63 
NIKEE Z JAMES13827122756 104.25 
TAYLOR M KIM13716222757 34.75 
MICHAEL KRMPOTIC13737622758 93.83 
ROWAN W LANG10222922759 108.50 
ZAKARY R LINES13833422760 34.75 
ANDREW E LUCAS JR13725122761 20.85 
RYAN D MCEACHEN13767422762 111.20 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627922763 579.30 
CASSANDRA M MUNSON13827222764 118.15 
EDRIE K PEARCE10244522765 591.86 
RAY MARTIN COMPANY13236922766 2,120.00 
COURTNEY K RIETZ13630622767 31.28 
DEB RINGER13090322768 22.30 
DALTON J RYAN13833622769 27.80 
SAMSON SANDERS13808322770 31.28 
TREY A SCHULTZ13700222771 31.28 
DAVID SWISHER13793422772 104.25 
ELIJAH TYNES13573922773 118.15 
BRET A WATSON13778522774 27.80 
CARLY J WHITE13767222775 27.80 
MARCIA L WILLIAMS13124122776 11.60 
AUSTIN K WILSON13700322777 13.90 

10,081.52 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773319580 5,020.00 
DONOVAN PROPERTIES LLC136245319634 1,703.05 

6,723.05 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

IRENE PULLUM137956319561 180.00 
STRATEGIC AIR & SPACE MUSEUM132315319562 21.00 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 20, 2010

Date: 12/15/2010

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KATELYN WALTER137350319565 180.00 
AMERICAN MULTI-CINEMA INC108312319569 303.75 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773319580 1,367.20 
AMERICAN MATHEMATICS COMPETITIONS012067319607 396.00 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806319621 349.40 
JONNA L CHILDERS-HANSEN024654319625 121.00 
LESLIEANNE HEIBEL138468319643 16.15 
CHRISTINA M HUTCHINSON135018319649 96.30 
HY-VEE INC049850319652 49.22 
TRACY LOGAN133027319662 118.31 
NATIONAL LATIN EXAM137141319674 550.00 
JILL L PROCHASKA138470319691 96.56 
KRISTEN REEVES135878319693 800.00 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851319699 420.00 
MICHELLE S SIMPSON136994319701 24.95 
MICHELE L STOGDILL134654319706 149.66 

5,239.50 Total for GRANT FUND
STRATEGIC AIR & SPACE MUSEUM132315319563 147.00 
CANDL FOUNDATION131497319574 96.00 
SHIRLEY M FULLER138002319581 175.00 
SHANNON D HEESACKER138463319582 175.00 
JOE D POLITO138464319589 175.00 
THERESE STRASESKI134633319590 390.00 
MONINA R WILLIAMS137233319593 350.00 

1,508.00 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

250,966.40 Report Total               

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Board Members to attend the NSBA Federal Relations Network 
 (FRN) Conference 
 
MEETING DATE:    December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Board of Education 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:   
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:   Board members may attend one major conference per year.  Attendance at 
additional conferences shall be approved by the board (Rule 8230.1). 
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: N/A 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  To approve the attendance of Dave Anderson, Linda Poole, and 
Mike Kennedy at the Federal Relations Network Conference 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   
 
TIME LINE:    
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Board President 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

75

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Repeal of Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Repeal Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 – These are a policy and a rule related to the 

reorganization of district boundaries.   
. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: With the creation of the Learning Community, the statutes were changed to 

provide a different means of reorganization or changes in boundaries of member 
school districts. 

 
 Since the procedures for reorganizations and changes of boundaries for district 

within a learning community are contained in statutes, it is recommended that the 
current policy and rule be repealed with no replacement policies being adopted. 

 
 A copy of the relevant statutes is attached for informational purposes. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 be repealed. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

76

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Business   
 
Land Transfer To and From the School District 3240 
  
 
The District may exchange parcels of land with class I, II, III, IV, and V school districts or accept or transfer or 
agree to transfer parcels in accordance with the statute providing for the same. 
 
Legal Reference:  RRS  §79-402 
 
 
Policy Approved:  March 7, 1994 Millard Public Schools 
      Omaha NE 

77



§ 79-4,117. Act, how cited

Sections 79-4,117  to 79-4,129  shall  be known  and  may
be cited as the Learning Community Reorganization Act.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 28; Laws 2007, LB641, § 5.

§ 79-4,118. Terms, defined

For purposes of the Learning Community Reorganization
Act:

(1) Learning community has the definition found in
section 79-2101;

(2) Reorganization of school districts means the
formation of new school districts that will become
members of a learning community, the alteration of
boundaries of established school districts that are
members of a learning  community,  the dissolution  or
disorganization of established  school districts  that are
members of a learning  community  through  or by means
of any one or combination  of the methods  set out in
section 79-4,120, and any other alteration of school
district boundaries  involving  a school district  that is a
member of a learning community; and

(3) State  committee  means  the State  Committee  for the
Reorganization of School Districts  created by section
79-435.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 29.

§ 79-4,119. Reorganization; plan required

Any reorganization  of school districts that affects a
school district that is a member of a learning community,
except dissolutions  pursuant  to section  79-470,  79-498,
79-499, or 79-598,  shall  only be accomplished  pursuant
to the Learning Community Reorganization Act, based on
a plan  submitted  to the state  committee  by the  learning
community coordinating council.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 30.

§ 79-4,120. Methods authorized

Reorganization of school districts pursuant to the
Learning Community Reorganization Act may be
accomplished through or by means of any one or more of
the following methods: (1) The creation of new districts;
(2) the uniting of one or more established districts; (3) the
subdivision of one or more  established  districts;  (4) the
transfer and attachment to an established district of a part

of the territory of one or more districts;  and (5) the
dissolution or disorganization  of an established  district
for any of the reasons specified by law.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 31.

§ 79-4,121. Plan review; state committee;
considerations

In the  review  of a plan  for the  reorganization  of school
districts pursuant to the Learning Community
Reorganization Act, the state  committee  shall  give due
consideration to (1) the educational needs of the learning
community, (2) economies in administration costs, (3) the
future use of existing satisfactory school buildings, sites,
and play fields, (4) the convenience and welfare of
pupils, (5) transportation requirements, (6) the
equalization of the educational opportunity of pupils, (7)
the amount  of outstanding  indebtedness  of each district
and proposed disposition thereof, (8) the equitable
adjustment of all property,  debts,  and liabilities  among
the districts involved, (9) any additional statutory
requirements for learning  community  organization,  and
(10) any other matters  which, in its judgment,  are of
importance. The learning community coordinating
council proposing the plan of reorganization, in
preparation or review  of a plan  for reorganization,  shall
take into consideration any advice or suggestions offered
by the state committee.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 32.

§ 79-4,122. Public hearings; record; notice

Before any plan of reorganization submitted by a learning
community coordinating council is approved by the state
committee pursuant to the Learning Community
Reorganization Act, the state committee shall hold one or
more public hearings. At such hearings, the state
committee shall  hear  any and all  persons interested with
respect to the areas of consideration  listed in section
79-4,121. The state  committee shall  keep a record  of all
hearings in the  formulation  or approval  of plans  for the
reorganization of school  districts.  Notice  of such  public
hearings of the state committee shall be given by
publication in a legal newspaper of general circulation in
the county  or counties in which the affected districts are
located at least ten days prior to such hearing.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 33.

§ 79-4,123. Plan of reorganization; contents

78

kfossen
Highlight

kfossen
Highlight



After one or more public  hearings  have been  held,  the
state committee may approve a plan or plans of
reorganization pursuant to the Learning Community
Reorganization Act. Such plan shall contain:

(1) A description  of the proposed boundaries  of the
reorganized districts  and a designation  of the class for
each district;

(2) A summary of the reasons for each proposed change,
realignment, or adjustment of the boundaries which shall
include, but not be limited to, an explanation of how the
plan complies with any statutory requirements for
learning community  organization  and an assurance  that
the plan does not increase  the geographic  size of any
school district  that has more than  twenty-five  thousand
students;

(3) A summary of the terms on which reorganization is to
be made between  the reorganized  districts.  Such terms
shall include a provision for initial school board districts
or wards within  the proposed  district,  which proposed
initial school board districts or wards shall be determined
by the state committee taking into consideration
population and valuation,  and a determination  of the
terms of the board members first appointed to
membership on the board of the newly reorganized
district;

(4) A statement  of the findings with respect to the
location of schools,  the  utilization  of existing  buildings,
the construction of new buildings, and the transportation
requirements under the proposed plan of reorganization;

(5) A map showing the boundaries of established school
districts and  the  boundaries  proposed  under  any plan  or
plans of reorganization; and

(6) Such other matters as the state committee determines
proper to be included.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 34.

§ 79-4,124. State committee; notification

The state committee shall, within thirty days after holding
the hearings  provided for in  section  79-4,122,  notify  the
learning community whether or not it approves or
disapproves such plan or plans.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 35.

§ 79-4,125. Disapproved plan; return to council

If the state  committee  disapproves  the plan  pursuant  to
the Learning Community Reorganization Act,  it  shall  be
considered a disapproved plan and returned to the
learning community coordinating council as a

disapproved plan.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 36; Laws 2007, LB641, § 6.

§ 79-4,126. Approved plan; procedure

When a plan of reorganization  or any part thereof  has
been approved  by the state committee  pursuant  to the
Learning Community Reorganization  Act, it shall be
designated as the final approved plan and shall be
returned to the learning community coordinating council
to be submitted  to the school boards of the affected
school districts  for approval  or rejection  by such  school
boards within forty-five days.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 37; Laws 2007, LB641, § 7.

§ 79-4,127. Indebtedness

Whenever two or more school districts are involved in a
reorganization plan pursuant to the Learning Community
Reorganization Act,  the old districts shall  continue to be
responsible for any indebtedness  incurred before the
reorganization takes place unless a different arrangement
is included in the plan.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 38.

§ 79-4,128. County clerk; duties; filings required

If the plan of reorganization  is approved  by the state
committee and  the  school  board  of each  affected  school
district pursuant to the Learning Community
Reorganization Act, the county clerk shall proceed to
cause the changes, realignment, and adjustment of
districts to be carried  out as provided  in the plan.  The
county clerk  shall  classify  the  school  districts  according
to the plan of reorganization.  He or she shall  also file
certificates with the county assessor,  county treasurer,
and state committee showing the boundaries of the
various districts under the approved plan of
reorganization.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 39; Laws 2007, LB641, § 8.

§ 79-4,129.  State committee;  duties; school board;
appointments; terms; duties

(1) Within thirty days after the classification  of the
reorganized school districts  by the county clerk under
section 79-4,128,  the  state  committee shall  appoint  from
among the legal voters of each new school district created
the number  of members necessary  to constitute  a school
board of the class  in which  the new school  district  has

79



been classified.  A reorganized  school district  shall be
formed and organized and shall  have a school  board not
later than April 1 following the last legal action, as
prescribed in section 79-4,128,  necessary  to effect the
changes in boundaries as set forth in the plan of
reorganization, although  the physical reorganization  of
such reorganized  school  district  shall  take  effect  July 1
following the classification  of the reorganized  school
districts under  section  79-4,128.  The first  board  shall  be
appointed on an at-large  basis,  and all boards  shall  be
elected at large  until  such time  as election  districts  are
established as provided in section 32-554.

(2) In appointing  the first school board of a Class II
school district, the members shall be appointed so that the
terms of three  members  expire  on the date of the first
regular meeting  of the board in January  after the first
even-numbered year following their appointment and the
terms of the three remaining members expire on the date
of the  first  regular  meeting of the board in January  after
the second even-numbered year following their
appointment. At the statewide general election in the first
even-numbered year after the reorganization, three board
members in each Class II school  district  shall  be elected
to terms of four  years.  Thereafter  all  candidates  shall  be
elected to terms of four years.  Each member's term shall
begin on the date of the first regular meeting of the board
in January following his or her election.

(3) In appointing  the first school board of a Class III
school district with a six-member board serving terms of
four years, the terms of three members shall expire on the
first Thursday after the first Tuesday in January after the
first even-numbered year following their appointment and
the terms of the three remaining members shall expire on
the first Thursday after the first Tuesday in January after
the second even-numbered year following their
appointment. Thereafter all Class III district school
boards with six-member boards shall  be elected to terms
of four years.

(4) In appointing  the first school board of a Class III
school district with a nine-member board serving terms of
four years, the terms of four members shall expire on the
first Thursday after the first Tuesday in January after the
first even-numbered year following their appointment and
the terms of five members shall expire on the first
Thursday after the first Tuesday in January after the
second even-numbered year following their appointment.
Thereafter all Class III district school boards with
nine-member boards shall be elected  to terms of four
years.

(5) In appointing  the first school board of a Class IV
school district, the members shall be appointed so that the
terms of three members shall expire on the third Monday
in May of the first odd-numbered  year following  their
appointment and the  terms of four  members shall  expire
on the third Monday in May of the second odd-numbered
year following their appointment. Thereafter all Class IV

district school boards  shall  be elected  to terms  of four
years.

(6) In appointing  the first school board of a Class V
school district with a twelve-member board serving terms
of four years,  the  terms  of six  members  shall  expire  on
the first Monday in January after the first even-numbered
year following  their appointment  and the terms of six
members shall expire on the first Monday in January after
the second even-numbered year following their
appointment. Thereafter all Class V district school boards
shall be elected to terms of four years.

(7) The school  boards  appointed  under  this  section  shall
proceed at  once to organize in the manner prescribed by
law.

Source:

Laws 2006, LB 1024, § 40.

§ 79-4,130. Repealed

History. Laws 2007, LB 641, § 54.

80



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Repeal of Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Repeal Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 – These are a policy and a rule related to the 

reorganization of district boundaries.   
. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: With the creation of the Learning Community, the statutes were changed to 

provide a different means of reorganization or changes in boundaries of member 
school districts. 

 
 Since the procedures for reorganizations and changes of boundaries for district 

within a learning community are contained in statutes, it is recommended that the 
current policy and rule be repealed with no replacement policies being adopted. 

 
 A copy of the relevant statutes is attached for informational purposes. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Policy 3240 and Rule 3240.1 be repealed. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

81

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Business            
 
Land Transfer Into or Out of the School District      3240.1 
 
Determination of the desirability of a change in Millard School District boundaries by transfer of parcels of land 
may include for consideration: 
 
 
1) Agreement by the Board of Education of all of the districts affected by the transfer.  
 

(a) In transfer of parcels into the District, the amount of bonded indebtedness to which the land is 
subject and the duration of the indebtedness. 
 

(b) Whether the land is contiguous to the existing boundary of the District and whether the 
number of boundaries between the land being considered and the District boundary would 
contribute to a communality of interests. 
 

(c) Projected use and zoning of the land proposed for transfer. 
 

(d) Whether the proposed transfer would have an immediate impact on the existing facilities in 
the District and what would be the projected impact with respect to the need for additional 
facilities. 
 

(e) Whether if additional facilities may be required, either in the near future or at a more distant 
time, proponents of the land transfer agree to provide by deed or option the necessary land for 
appropriate school facilities and at a specific location or locations selected by the District, and 
the terms and conditions related thereto; or for the proponents to make payment to the District 
from non-public funds of such an amount as determined by the Board to be necessary for 
purchase and construction of additional facilities which would be required if the parcel of 
lands are developed. 

 
2) In transfers of parcels out of the District.  

 
(a) Whether the transfer would adversely affect the alignment or location of existing boundaries. 

 
(b) The assessed valuation and tax revenue, which would reduce the income of the District. 

 
(c) Whether the proposed transfer would have either an immediate or long-term impact on the 

existing facilities and personnel of the District. 
 
3) Any other factors which affect the responsibilities of the District by statute, regulation, or district policies. 
 
 
Legal Reference: RRS §79-402 et seq. 
 
 
Rule Adopted:  March 7, 1994       Millard Public Schools 
                   Omaha, NE 

82



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 3510 – Support Services – Operations – Security - Locks 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Policy 3510 – Support Services – Operations – Security – Locks – A revision of 

the policy. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a revision of the policy with regard to locks and access to the buildings.  

Most of the access points into the buildings in the district are now done 
electronically.  The electronic system is maintained at the district level. 

 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that (after second reading) Policy 3510 be approved as 

submitted. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

83

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Business   
 
Security:  Buildings and GroundsSupport Services - Operations 
 
KeysSecurity – Locks 3510 
 
 
The Superintendent (Designee) shall be responsible for the installation, maintenance, and operation of all electronic 
and manual lock systems controlling access to the District’s facilities. All keys used in a school shall be the 
responsibility of the respective principal. 
 
 
Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-501RRS §79-440 District board; duty to maintain schoolhouse; accounts 
 
 
Policy Adopted:  April 7, 1975 Millard Public Schools 
Policy Revised:  January 10, 2011 Omaha, Nebraska 

84



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Revise Policy 3517 and Reaffirm Rule 3517.1 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Revise Policy 3517 and Reaffirm Rule 3517.1  -- This is the revision/reaffirmation 

of a policy and rule related to the district’s safety committee 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a wording revision to Policy 3517 and a reaffirmation of Rule 3517.1 

related to the District’s Safety Committee. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that (after second reading of the policy) Policy 3517 be adopted 

as presented and that Rule 3517.1 be reaffirmed. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

85

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Business  
 
Injury Prevention Program 3517 
 
The District shall comply with the requirements of the State of Nebraska to establish a Safety Committee as required 
by law and rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
 
 
 
Legal References:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §48-443(1993 Supp) 
 
 
Policy Millard Public Schools 
Approved:  September 23, 1996 
Revised:  January 10, 2011 Omaha, NE 
 

86



Business  
 
Safety Committee 3517.1 
 
There shall be established a Safety Committee consisting of eight members: 

 
a.   four of whom shall be appointed by the Superintendent, or his or her designee; and, 
 
b.   one who shall be selected and appointed by the collective bargaining units representing the certificated 

staff (teachers and nurses); and, 
 
c.   one who shall be selected and appointed by the collective bargaining unit representing the custodial 

and maintenance staff; and, 
 
d.   one who shall be selected and appointed by the collective bargaining unit representing the educational 

paraprofessionals; and, 
 
e.   one who shall be selected and appointed by the secretarial, food service and SPED van driver and other 

staff. 
 
The safety committee will operate within the guidelines established by the Nebraska Department of Labor for injury 
prevention programs.  Each school principal shall be responsible for implementing the district safety program in his 
or her building.  The Superintendent will assign an administrator the responsibility for implementing the district 
safety program in each of the district’s non-school buildings. 
 
 
Rule Millard Public Schools 
Approved:  September 23, 1996 Omaha, NE 
Reaffirmed:  January 10, 2010 
 

87



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Rule 5400.3 
 
MEETING DATE:     December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:      Discipline of Students under Section 504 of the       
                                                                       Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:  The rule is being updated due to changes in law as 

well as the transferring of some of the 
responsibilities to the Special Education Dept. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      Immediate 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

88

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 
Pupil Services 5400.3 
 
Discipline of Students under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
I. General Statement.  Suspension and expulsion of eligible disabled students under Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall comply with District procedures and federal and state statutes, regulations, 
and rules.  

         
II. Eligible Disabled Students. 
 

A. Eligible disabled students defined.  An eligible disabled student is any student between the ages 
of five (5) and twenty-one (21) who has not graduated, and who has been determined by a District 
504 Committee to qualify as disabled under Section 504, and for whom the District has made 
available an accommodation plan. a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one 
or more major life activities, or has a record of such an impairment, or is regarded as having such 
an impairment. 

 
B. Physical or mental impairment defined.  Physical or mental impairment means any physiological 

disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the 
following body systems:  neurological; musculoskeletal; special sense organs; respiratory, 
including speech organs; cardiovascular; reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary; hemic and 
lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental 
retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. 

 
C. Substantially limits defined.  Substantially limits is not defined by Section 504 nor Title II and is 

subject to interpretation on a case-by-case basis.  Title II provides three factors which characterize 
the term "substantially limits":  the nature and severity, the duration or expected duration, and the 
permanent or long-term impact of the impairment. 

 
D. Major life activities defined.  Major life activities means functions such as caring for one's self, 

performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, and working. 
 

E. Has a record of such impairment defined.  Has a record of such an impairment means has a 
history of, or has been misclassified as having a mental or physical impairment that substantially 
limits one or more major life activities. 

 
F. Regarded as having an impairment defined.  Regarded as having an impairment means has a 

physical or mental impairment that does not substantially limit major life activities but that is 
treated by the District as constituting such a limitation; has a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limits major life activities only as a result of the attitudes of others toward such 
impairment; or has none of the impairments defined in paragraph B above but is treated by the 
District as having such an impairment. 

 
III. Expulsion. 
 

A. Expulsion defined.  For the purposes of this Rule, any exclusion from school for more than ten 
(10) school days at one time shall be deemed an expulsion from school and a significant change in 
placement. 

 
B. Section 504 Committee manifestation determination.  Before a disabled student is expelled from 

school, the student's 504 Committee will convene to determine whether the student's misconduct 
was a manifestation of the student's disability. 

  

89



C. Manifestation determination.  In carrying out a manifestation determination, the 504 Committee may 
determine that the misconduct of the student was not a manifestation of the student’s disability only if: 

  
1. The 504 Committee first considers, in terms of the misconduct which is the subject of the 

disciplinary action, all relevant information in the student’s file, any teacher observations, 
any relevant information supplied by the parents of the student, and the student’s 
Individual Aaccommodation Pplan (IAP) and placement.  

 
2. The 504 Committee then determines if the conduct in question was caused by or had a 

direct and substantial relationship to the student’s disability or if the conduct in question 
was the direct result of the District’s failure to implement the student’s IAP 
accommodation plan. 

 
3. If the 504 Committee determines that any of the standards in the immediately preceding 

Section III(C)(2) paragraph C (2) were not met, then the misconduct must be considered 
a manifestation of the student’s disability. 

 
D. Behavior not a manifestation of the disability.  If the 504 Committee determines that the 

misconduct is not a manifestation of the student’s disability, then the student may be excluded 
from school pursuant to the procedures set forth herein and in District Rule 5400.1.  If a student is 
excluded pursuant to District Rule 5400.1, then the student shall be eligible for academic credit 
upon successful participation in and completion of alternative school, classes, or programs 
pursuant to District Rule 5400.5 5400.6.  When a student so participates in alternative school, 
classes, or programs pursuant to District Rule 5400.5 5114.6, the student’s 504 Committee shall 
convene to consider appropriate changes to the student’s IAP accommodation plan. 

 
E. Behavior which is a manifestation of the disability.  If the 504 Committee determines that the 

misconduct is a manifestation of the student's disability, then the student may not be excluded for 
more than ten (10) school days.  The 504 Committee will determine whether the student's current 
educational placement and related aids and services contained in the student's current IAP are 
appropriate.  If deemed inappropriate, then changes to the IAP will be considered by the 504 
Committee.  

  
F. Expulsion procedures.  When a disabled student is excluded from school for more than ten (10) 

school days, the student and the student's parent are entitled to Section 504's procedural rights 
including an opportunity for the examination of records, an impartial hearing (with participation of 
parents and opportunity for counsel), and review by an independent reviewer. In those cases where 
parents disagree with the manifestation determination, or with the subsequent placement and 
related aids and services decisions (in those cases where the misconduct is determined to be a 
manifestation of the disability), they may then request an informal conference or due process 
hearing as set forth in Sections VII through X below. 

 
G. Alternative Education Program.  Expelled disabled students will have available alternative 

education pursuant to District rule 5400.5. 
 
IV. Drugs and Alcohol. 

 
The District shall take disciplinary action pertaining to the use or possession of illegal drugs or alcohol 
against any student who is an individual with a disability and who currently is engaging in the illegal use or 
possession of drugs or in the use or possession of alcohol, to the same extent that such disciplinary action is 
taken against students who are not individuals with disabilities.  The procedural safeguards provided in 34 
C.F.R. § 104.36 and in Section III (F) above and Sections VII through XI below, shall not apply to such 
disciplinary actions. 

 
V. Suspension. 
 

90



A. Behavior which is a manifestation of the disability.  A student may be suspended from school for 
ten (10) school days or less, even if the student's misconduct is a manifestation of the student's 
disability. 

 
B. Suspension not a change in placement.  A suspension of ten (10) school days or less at one time 

does not constitute a change of placement; however, if a student is suspended for more than ten 
(10) cumulative school days during the school year, then the 504 Committee shall convene for 
each subsequent suspension to review and determine the appropriateness of the student's IAP 
accommodation plan. 

 
C. Suspension conditions and procedures.  A suspension of five (5) school days or less shall follow 

the conditions and procedures for a short-term suspension set forth in District Rule 5400.1.  A 
suspension of more than five (5) school days, but not more than ten (10) school days, shall follow 
the conditions and procedures for a long-term suspension set forth in District Rule 5400.1. 

 
VI. Emergency Exclusion. 
 

A disabled student may be subject to emergency exclusion for the reasons and pursuant to the procedures 
set forth in District Rule 5400.1. 

 
VII. Informal Conference. 
 

Parents and students of majority age may file with the school principal a written request for an informal 
conference to discuss suspension, expulsion, or the manifestation determination.  Within ten (10) school 
days of the receipt of the request, the principal will convene an informal conference team consisting of the 
parents, school administrators, and the student's 504 Committee to attempt to resolve any disagreements.  

 
VIII. Preliminary Procedures for Formal Hearings. 
 

A. The following rules apply for formal hearings: 
 

1. The student's parents must file a written request with the District's Director of Pupil 
Services for a formal due process hearing with respect to the suspension or expulsion of 
their child, or the manifestation determination. The written request must include an 
explanation of the parents' concern related to the suspension, expulsion, or manifestation 
determination.  

 
2. If a formal hearing is requested, the Director of Pupil Services will appoint an impartial 

hearing officer.  The hearing officer shall not be a witness at the hearing, must have no 
involvement in the case, must not be a District employee, and must be available to 
answer any questions relative to the hearing.  The District, however, may pay the hearing 
officer as an independent contractor.  

 
3. The hearing must be held within twenty (20) school days after a parent's initial request 

for a hearing, but cannot be held without providing the principal and the student's 
parents at least five (5) school days prior notice.  

 
4. The student's parents or representative shall have the right to examine the records and 

written statements (including the statements of any witnesses for the District) at a 
reasonable time prior to the hearing. 

 
5. The hearing officer will also be available preceding the hearing to answer questions 

concerning the nature and conduct of the hearing.  
 
IX. The following rules apply when a formal hearing is conducted: 

 

91



A. The following shall attend the hearing: the hearing officer, the principal (or designee), the 
student's parents, and the student's representative (if any).  The principal and Board may also 
have counsel present. 
 

B. Witnesses may be present only when giving information at the hearing. 
 

C. The hearing shall be closed to the public.  The decision shall be treated as a record of the 
student, and will not be made available to the public.  

 
D. The student may be present if requested by the parents; however, the hearing officer may exclude 

the student at times when the student's psychological evaluation or emotional problems are being 
discussed.  

 
E. The principal shall present statements, in affidavit form, to the hearing officer of anyone having 

information pertinent to the case only if the affidavits have been made available to the student's 
parents or representative prior to the hearing. 

 
F. The hearing officer is not bound by the rules of evidence or other rules of courtroom procedure. 
  
G. The following persons may ask persons to testify at the hearing:  the student; the student's 

parents or representative; the principal (or designee); and the hearing officer. 
 
H. The persons listed in the preceding paragraph shall have the right to question any witness giving 

information at the hearing.  
 
I. The testimony shall be under oath and the hearing officer shall administer the oath. 
 
J. Any person giving testimony is given the same immunity from liability as a person testifying in a 

court case.  
 

K. The hearing shall be recorded at District expense.  
 
X. Decision of the Hearing Officer. 
 

A. The decision of the hearing officer shall conform with the following: 
 

1. It shall be issued within ten (10) school days after the hearing.  It will contain findings 
of fact, a decision of the action(s) to be taken, and the reasons therefor therefore.  The 
decision will be based solely upon the evidence presented at the hearing.  

 
2. Written notice of the decision of the hearing officer shall be sent by the Director of Pupil 

Services, by registered or certified mail, or by personal delivery, to the student’s parents. 
 

  B. Upon receipt of the written notice, the hearing officer’s decision shall take effect.   
 
XI. Review Procedure. 
 

A. Either the complainant or the school may appeal the decision of the hearing officer to an 
independent reviewer appointed by the Director of Pupil Services. The independent reviewer 
must not be a witness at the hearing, must have no involvement in the case, and must be available 
to answer any questions relative to the hearing. The independent reviewer cannot be an employee 
of, or under contract with the District. Payment to the independent reviewer for his/her services 
does not make the reviewer an employee of, or under contract with the District. 

 
B.  A written request for appeal must be filed with the Director of Pupil Services within five (5) days 

of the receipt of the written notice of the decision of the hearing officer. A request for appeal 

92



must be based on an alleged error of fact or law, and the written request must explain the reasons 
for the appeal and the alleged error of fact or law. 

 
C.  The non-appealing party may file a written response with the independent reviewer within five 

(5) school days of that party’s receipt of the written request for appeal. 
 

D.  The independent reviewer shall hold a hearing within twenty (20) school days of the filing of the 
written request for appeal, but such hearing cannot be held without providing all parties with at 
least five (5) school days notice. The proceedings of the hearing shall be limited to the 
presentation of oral arguments regarding the alleged errors of fact or law. The independent 
reviewer is not bound by the rules of evidence or other rules of courtroom procedure. 

 
E.  The independent reviewer will complete the review and issue a written decision within ten (10) 

school days of the hearing. The independent reviewer has the authority to revise the findings and 
decision of the hearing officer and the decision of the independent reviewer will be final. 

 
Related Policies & Rules:  5400, 5400.1, 5400.2, 5400.4, 5400.5, 5400.6 
 
Legal Reference: Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
  34 C.F.R. § 104.1 through 104.10 
  34 C.F.R. § 104.31 through 104.39 
 
Rule Approved: December 6, 1993    Millard Public Schools  
Rule Revised: June 15, 1998; September 25, 2000; August 7, 2006; Omaha, Nebraska 
December 7, 2009; December 20, 2010 
  

93



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Policy 5480 
 
MEETING DATE:     December 20, 2010  
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Search and Seizure 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:  The policy is up for periodic review. The Policy 

governs reasonable search and seizure of student 
and district property. 

  
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      Immediate 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

94

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services  
 

Search and Seizure          5480 
 
 
Certificated staff members are permitted to search students or students’ possessions whenever there is a reasonable 
suspicion that the student has in the student's possession illegal, dangerous or any other object the possession of 
which is contrary to District Policy, governing law, or when necessary for the welfare and well-being of students, 
protection of District property, or the administration of District Policy. 
 
School lockers are the exclusive property of the District and may be opened or searched by certificated staff 
members without notice and without student consent.  
 
Certificated staff members may seize and take custody of any objects or substances found during a search whenever 
such objects or substances are dangerous, contrary to law or school policy, or which may threaten the welfare of 
students, school personnel, or District property.  
 
The refusal of a student to consent or submit to a reasonable search and/or to surrender objects or substances found 
as a result of such search may be grounds for discipline. 
 
Policy Approved: July 5, 1988      
Revised: July 5, 1994; October 16, 2000     
Reaffirm: December 20, 1010                                                                                             Millard Public Schools 
        Omaha, NE  

95



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Rule 5480.1 
 
MEETING DATE:     December 20, 2010  
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Search and Seizure 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:  The rule is up for periodic review. The rule governs 

reasonable search and seizure of student and district 
property. 

  
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      Immediate 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 
 

96

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services  
 
Search and Seizure 5480.1 
 
 
I. General Statement.  Certificated staff are authorized to conduct searches of a student's person, clothing, 

automobile, and property under a student's control including, but not limited to, purses, handbags, book 
bags, and briefcases.  Certificated staff are also authorized to search student lockers.  Certificated staff may 
take into custody any objects or substances that are illegal under federal or state law, or in violation of 
District Policy or Rule. 

 
II. Procedures for Non-District Property.  The following procedures shall be followed with respect to searches 

and seizures under this Rule: 
 

A. Reasonable Searches Permitted.   
 

1. Searches of non-District property are to be conducted at such times and places as are 
reasonable under the circumstances.  The scope of the search shall likewise be 
reasonable. 

 
2. Searches can be made under this Rule at any place on District property, at a District 

event, or at a place under District control or sponsorship. 
 

B. Person, Clothing, Automobiles, Personal Possessions, and Field Trips. 
 

1. A search of a student's person, clothing, automobile, personal property or possessions 
will only be made if there is reasonable cause to believe that the student has possession or 
control of an illegal object or substance that is illegal under federal or state law, or in 
violation of District Policy or Rule.  

 
2. A search of the person, clothing, automobile, personal property or possessions shall be 

made, whenever practicable, by two certificated staff members.  When the search is made 
of the student's person, the search shall be conducted only by staff members of the same 
sex as the student being searched. 

 
3. Prior to leaving on a field trip or other off-campus activity sponsored or participated in by 

the District, the District may search any baggage, purses, or other containers in the 
possession of or under the control of a District student participating in the field trip or 
other off-campus activity. 

 
III. District Property:  Student Lockers.   Student lockers are the exclusive property of the District and the 

District does not relinquish its control and ownership of lockers by making them available for students.  
Student lockers are provided to students only for student convenience, and this privilege may be withdrawn 
by the District at any time.  The search and inspection of lockers and the taking into custody of objects or 
substances which are illegal or in violation of District Policy or Rule may be conducted at any time by 
certificated staff without notice and without student consent.  Whenever practicable, two certificated staff 
members shall be present at the time locker searches are conducted.   

 
IV. Enforcement of this Rule.  The refusal by a student to consent to or permit a search, or the refusal to 

surrender objects or substances which are illegal or violate District Policy or Rule, may subject such 
student to suspension, expulsion, or other disciplinary action. 

 
V. Law Enforcement Authorities.  Police officers and other law enforcement authorities shall be permitted to 

conduct a search of a student, the student's clothing, and the student's possessions and property on District 
property, at a District event, or at a place under District control whenever such officers or authorities: 

97



A. Possess a judicial order providing for the same;   
  

B. Are otherwise authorized by law to make a search; or  
 

C. Exigent circumstances exist.   
 

D. Neither school officials nor staff members shall participate directly or indirectly in any search or 
actions relating thereto conducted by a police officer or law enforcement official.   

 
 
Related Rules:   5400.1 
 5410.1 
 
 
Rule Approved: July 13, 1988  
Revised: July 5, 1994; June 16, 1997; October 16, 2000  
Reaffirm: December 20, 2010  Millard Public Schools 
                                                                                                                                                                       Omaha, NE 

98



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Rule 5480.2 
 
MEETING DATE:     December 20, 2010  
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Searches by Sniffer Dogs 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:  The rule is up for periodic review. The rule governs 

sniffer dog searches. 
  
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      Immediate 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 
 
 

99

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services  
 
Searches by Sniffer Dogs 5480.2 
 
 
I. Purpose.  The District shall use trained sniffer dogs to detect illegal drugs or contraband on school property.  

The purpose of the District's use of sniffer dogs is to respond to the problem of illegal drugs and contraband 
on school property, and to maintain a safe school environment conducive to learning. 

 
II. Types of Searches.   
 

A. Search of Property.  Sniffer dogs may be used to sniff the air in or around vacant classrooms, 
vacant common areas, student lockers, and automobiles parked on school property.  If the dog 
alerts to a particular locker, car, and/or an object(s) in a vacant classroom or other vacant common 
areas, it may be searched.  If the dog alerts to a student's car, the student will be asked to unlock 
the car doors and trunk for an internal inspection.  If the student refuses to unlock the car or trunk, 
the student's parents or guardian shall be notified of the student's refusal. 

 
B. Search of Students.  Sniffer dogs will not be used for random sweep searches of students, and will 

only be allowed to sniff an individual student if there is sufficient  cause to believe that the student 
possesses illegal drugs or other contraband.  If sufficient cause exists and the sniffer dog alerts to a 
student suspected of having illegal drugs or contraband, the student's outer garments and/or purse 
or personal belongings shall be subject to search.  If a pat search is necessary, it will be conducted 
by someone of the same sex as the suspected student.   

 
III. Notice of Use of Sniffer Dogs.  District students and their parents or guardian will be notified annually of 

the District's use of sniffer dogs.  The notice will include the following information:  
 

A. That the District may use sniffer dogs to detect illegal drugs and/or contraband at any time, 
announced or unannounced; 

 
B. That lockers remain under the jurisdiction of the District, and that although lockers are used by 

students during the school year, lockers are owned by the District and are subject to a sniff search 
at any time.  That illegal objects or substances found in lockers may be seized. 

 
C. That all cars parked on school property shall be subject to a sniff search at any time, and that 

illegal objects or substances may be seized.  
 

D. That students shall be subject to a sniff search if there is sufficient cause to believe that a student 
possesses illegal drugs or contraband. 

 
E. That classrooms and all common areas are subject to a sniff search at any time whenever students 

are not present. 
 

F. That if any illegal drugs or contraband are found on a student's person, or in his/her automobile, 
locker, or any other place on school property that the student has placed illegal drugs or 
contraband, the student may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, including suspension or 
expulsion. 

 
G. That students' parent(s) or guardian(s) shall be notified if illegal drugs or contraband are 

discovered.   
 
IV. Disciplinary Action.  Students who are found to be in violation of this Rule shall be subject to appropriate 

disciplinary action, including short-term suspension, emergency exclusion, long-term suspension, 
mandatory reassignment, expulsion, and/or curtailment from extracurricular activities.   

100



V. Definitions. 
 

A. Alerts to shall mean an indication by the sniffer dog that the odor of an illegal drug or contraband 
is in the air or upon a student. 

 
B. Contraband shall mean all items prohibited by federal, state, or local law, or by District Policy or 

Rule from being brought onto school property including, but not limited to, drug paraphernalia as 
defined in District Rule 5410.1, guns, and knives. 

 
C. Illegal drugs shall mean those substances defined in District Rule 5410.1 under Section III (B) (2) 

"Mood or behavior affecting substances", and any other drug which is illegal according to federal, 
state or local law. 

 
D. Outer garments shall mean all clothing (slacks, trousers, dresses, shoes, hats, coats, gloves, etc.) 

except the student's undergarments. 
 
E. Sufficient cause shall mean "reasonable cause" in the event the search is conducted by certificated 

staff of the District or its authorized agent, or "probable cause" if the search is conducted by police 
officers or other law enforcement authorities.   

 
 
Related Rules:  5400.1 
 5480.1 
 
 
Rule Approved:  June 16, 1997  
Revised: October 16, 2000  
Reaffirmed: December 20, 2010 
 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha, NE 

101



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: December 20, 2010 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel item: (1) VSP – Voluntary Separation Plan; (2) RNI – 
Retirement Notification Incentive; (3) Hires; (4) Leave of Absence 

 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

102

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



December 20, 2010 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Recommend: the following Leave of Absence be accepted: 

1. Samantha A. Morrissey – Kindergarten Teacher at Upchurch Elementary School. 
She is requesting a Leave of Absence, effective December 22, 2010, for the 
remainder of the 2010-2011 school year for family reasons. 
 

103



December 20, 2010 
 

Voluntary Separation Program 
 

 
Recommend:  The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s 
  Voluntary Separation Program: 
 
23. Cheryl K. Becker – American History Teacher at Millard Central Middle School. 

35 years of service. 
24. Dennis A. Hanley – MEP Technology Facilitator at Ron Witt Support Service 

Center. 30 years of service. 
25. Nancy J. Brugger – Counselor at Kiewit Middle School. 31 years of service. 
26. Pamela S. Hoover – World Language Teacher at Millard South High School. 30 

years of service. 
27. Gay Lynn Baker – Grade 2 Teacher at Hitchcock Elementary School. 35 years of 

service. 
28. Danya A. Linneman – Special Education Teacher at the Young Adult Program.  

10 years of service. 
29. Kenneth E. Miller – Math Teacher at Central Middle School. 26 years of service. 
30. Robert J. Trauernicht – Industrial Technology Teacher at Millard North High 

School. 39 years of service. 
 
 

104



December 20, 2010 
 

Resignation Notification Incentive 
 
 

Recommend:  The following resignations be approved to participate in the District’s 
Resignation Notification Incentive Program: 

 
40. Cheryl K. Becker – Grade 8, American History Teacher at Central Middle School.  

She is retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
41. Bryans A. Lubbers – Assistant Principal at Millard North Middle School. He is 

retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
42. Tonia N. Ferguson – ELI Teacher at Norris Elementary School.  She is resigning 

at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family relocation. 
43. Linda S. Ferguson – Family Consumer Science Teacher at Millard North High 

School.  She is retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
44. Barbara J. Asmus – Grade 1 Teacher at Bryan Elementary School.  She is retiring 

at the of the 2010/11 school year. 
45. Charles Asmus – Grade 5 Teacher at Sandoz Elementary School.  He is retiring at 

the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
46. Sean M. Johnston – Language Arts Teacher at Millard Horizon High School. He 

is resigning at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family responsibilities. 
47. Kate McGinness – English Teacher at Millard South High School.  She is 

resigning at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family relocation. 
48. Nancy J. Brugger – Counselor at Kiewit Middle School.  She is retiring at the end 

of the 2010/11 school year. 
49. Melissa L. Zeches – Science Teacher at Beadle Middle School.  She is resigning 

at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family relocation. 
50. Autum Cole – Grade 2 Teacher at Morton Elementary School.  She is resigning at 

the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family responsibilities. 
51. Dennis A. Hanley – MEP Technology Facilitator.  He is retiring at the end of the 

2010/11 school year. 
52. Marcee L. Timmermans – READ Teacher at Rockwell Elementary School. She is 

retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
53. Ann E. Stritt – Grade 7 Language Arts Teacher at Beadle Middle School.  She is 

resigning at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family responsibilities. 
54. Diann R. Berzina – Language Arts Teacher at Central Middle School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
55. David C. Robinson – Industrial Tech Teacher at Russell Middle School. He is 

retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 
56. Sarah B. Anderson – Kindergarten Teacher at Cather Elementary School.  She is 

resigning at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family responsibilities. 
57. Tana M. Wallace – Art Teacher at Ackerman and Aldrich Elementary Schools.  

She is resigning at the end of the 2010/11 school year due to family 
responsibilities. 

58. Pamela S. Hoover – World Language Teacher at Millard South High School.  She 
is retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 

105



59. Gay Lynn Baker – Grade 2 Teacher at Hitchcock Elementary School.  She is 
retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 

60. Tracy Glantz – Art Teacher at Millard South High School. She is resigning at the 
end of the 2010/11 school year due to continuing education. 

61. Danya A. Linneman – Special Education Teacher at the Young Adult Program. 
She is retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 

62. Kenneth E. Miller – Math Teacher at Millard Central Middle School.  He is 
retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 

63. Robert J. Trauernicht – Industrial Technology Teacher at Millard North High 
School.  He is retiring at the end of the 2010/11 school year. 

 

106



December 20, 2010 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2010/2011 school year: 
 
  
1. David G. McEnaney – BA – N.W. Missouri State.  Science Teacher at Millard North High 

School starting January 5, 2011. 
 

107



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Risk Management Report 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Risk Management Report – A report on the insurance coverage maintained by the 

District. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only      x                                .       
 
BACKGROUND: Don Kamins, Bill Johnson, and Bill Unger of the Harry A. Koch Company 

(HAKCO) are the District’s insurance consultants.  Some or all of them will be 
present to answer any questions board members may have. 

 
  
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: HAKCO and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

108

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

 

 
 

Millard Public Schools 
2010 Commercial Insurance Risk Management Report 

 
Millard Public Schools’ property and casualty insurance program renewed in 2010 with positive 
financial results.  We marketed (bid) Millard’s  insurance program to numerous (22) workers’ 
compensation and multi-line package markets (exhibit 1& 2).  There were no material changes in 
coverages, deductibles, or limits within the overall program.  There was one coverage 
enhancement in regard to pollution/mold liability.  After the competitive premium and coverage 
comparison, the incumbent carriers prevailed and they remain to be United Heartland for 
workers’ compensation, Travelers for package, and Chartis Insurance Group for the School 
Board E & O and Network Security policies. 
 
        While the cost of risk continues to be positive for Millard Public Schools overall, we did 
have an increase of premium in the workers’ compensation line due to adverse loss ratios.  
However, the workers’ compensation premium per $100 of payroll remains to be below 2007 
costs as a percentage of payroll(see historical trend analysis – exhibit 3).  The previous policy 
years of 2008 and 2009 provided a savings of over $300,000 compared to market pricing.  The 
2010 property and liability policies continue to decrease in rate due to good loss experience and 
a larger exposure basis.  Despite the increase in the workers’ compensation area, Millard Public 
Schools overall cost of risk remains to be below national peer averages comparisons by 3.2% 
(Risk and Insurance Management Society, Inc. 2010 Report).   
 
        The 2010 year risk management activities were significant in time and results.  Below is a 
highlight of these activities: 
 

 Comprehensive Risk Analysis© was performed which consisted of numerous meetings 
with MPS administrators and department mangers.  All perceived exposures to risk were 
analyzed along with appropriate coverage and or retention.  

 Risk Analysis of information technology network security with respects to breach of 
privacy and crisis management 

 Enhancement of Pollution/Mold Liability insurance with limits of $1,000,000 
 Quarterly claim reviews  
 Loss Control inspections of schools and the design of a school risk identification checklist 
 Ongoing loss control awareness meetings with Administrators, Sodexo and staff.        
 Review of MPS’s contractual risk transfer for selected vendors, suppliers, contractors 

including First Student Transportation Interlocal agreement.    
 

The 2010 insurance market remained soft with competitive premiums, coverages, and terms for 
urban school districts in Nebraska and nationwide.  The market for school districts is considered 
stable with strong competitors and good financial results.  At this time, Millard is insured by  

109



 

 

 
 
page 2 of 2 
 
companies that are considered industry leaders in terms of coverage, services and expertise in 
educational risks.   
 
While Millard has seen some decreases in their historical frequency of workers’ compensation 
claims, per claim severity costs have been on the rise (exhibit 4).  This following year in 2011, 
Nebraska base rates for education risks are increasing 5.7%.  In addition, Millard’s experience 
modification factor will see some upward pressure of approximately 6%.  We anticipate these 
two factors will provide upward pricing pressure for Millard’s workers’ compensation premium in 
2011.  However, we feel we can moderate any rate increase with continued safety and loss 
prevention efforts and market competition.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Don Kamins   Bill Johnson   Bill Unger      
Sr. Sr. Vice President Sr. Vice President  Vice President 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

110



 

 

EExxhhiibbiitt  11  
  
MMaarrkkeettiinngg  SSuummmmaarryy  
 
Named Insured: School Dist #17 of Douglas County 
Policy Term: 6/1/2010  to 6/1/2011 
 
 
 
We have approached the companies listed below for quotations on your account, and 

have the following results: 
 
Workers Compensation: 

• Acuity - declined, acct is too large 
• Amerisafe - declined, class 
• AmTrust - declined, not competitive; estimated needed premium of $900,000 
• Berkshire-Hathaway - declined, not competitive; estimated needed premium of $857,000 
• Chubb - declined, class  
• CNA - declined, class 
• EMC - declined, size of acct is outside their comfort zone 
• Guarantee Ins Co - declined, loss experience 
• Hartford - quoted $905,749 guaranteed cost 
• Indiana Insurance - declined, can't match current coverages 
• Liberty Mutual - quoted $751,999 guaranteed cost with no medical ded 
• Travelers - declined, not competitive; estimated needed premium of $860,000 
• United Heartland - quoted renewal at $751,540 guaranteed cost with no medical ded 
• Zurich - declined, class 

 
Other lines of Insurance: 

• Chubb - declined; could only consider Property coverage for this class 
• CNA - declined; want to write private schools only, not public 
• EMC - declined; district is 3 or 4 times the size of the next largest school that they write; uncomfortable 

with size and exposures 
• Hartford - declined; could only consider Property & WC coverages for this class 
• Indiana Insurance - declined; unable to match/exceed several coverages and/or limits on current policies 
• Liberty - declined; could only consider Property & WC coverages for this class 
• Philadelphia - declined; want to write private schools mostly, not public 
• Tri-State/CWG - declined; this account is too large for their appetite; want districts under 10,000 

students 

111



Exhibit 2

Premium Summary
Named Insured:  School District #17 of Douglas County

Description
of Coverage

Annualized
2009/2010
Premium 

 Renewal
2010/2011
Premium 

Property $                         299,724 $                         299,368 
Inland Marine $                             6,067 $                             6,093 
General Liability $                         220,230 $                         224,038 
Automobile $                         148,566 $                         156,328 
Workers' Compensation $                         566,982 $                         751,540 
Umbrella $                         116,290 $                         118,031 
Boiler & Machinery $                           28,624 $                           28,624 
Crime $                             8,451 $                             8,510 
Fiduciary Liability $                             6,924 $                             6,941 
Nurses Professional Liability $                           11,227 $                           11,227 
School Board E&O $                           20,842 $                           20,842 
Network Security $                           25,222 $                           24,237 
Installation Floater $                             1,500 $                             1,500 
Pollution Liability N/A $                           36,516 
HAK Consulting Fee $                           43,767 $                           45,414 
Total Estimated Premium $                      1,504,416 $                      1,739,209 

School Dist #17
Premium Comparison

112



0.055

0.06

0.065

0.07

0.075

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

School District 17 / Millard Public Schools

Five Year Trend Analysis - Property Cost of Risk

0

5

10

15

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

School District 17 / Millard Public Schools

Five Year Trend Analysis - General Liability Cost of Risk

$-

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

School District 17 / Millard Public Schools

Five Year Trend Analysis - Automobile Cost of Risk

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

School District 17 / Millard Public Schools

Five Year Trend Analysis - Workers' Compensation Cost of Risk

Exhibit 3

113



Exhibit 4

Millard Public School District

(per $1mm payroll) (per $1,000 payroll)
# of Claims Audited Payroll Incurred Loss EMOD Loss Frequency Incurred Loss Rate

2005 138 93,624,588$            311,002$               1.04      14.74 3.322
2006 158 99,092,691$            425,359$               1.02      15.94 4.293
2007 158 106,873,987$          477,669$               0.92      14.78 4.469
2008 108 117,888,488$          480,496$               0.93      9.16 4.076
2009 110 121,508,215$          621,391$               1.01      9.05 5.114
2010 43 116,440,580$          224,649$              0.99    8.86 4.630

2005 - 2007 =  Liberty Mutual
2008 - 2010 = United Heartland

Five Year WC Historical Loss Trend

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

(per $1mm payroll) Loss Frequency (per $1,000 payroll) Incurred Loss Rate

114



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Site Plan Reports 
 
MEETING DATE: December 20, 2010 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Site Plan Reports – Information on projects initiated through the 
site planning process. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL ______  DISCUSSION _____   INFORMATION ONLY   XXX       
 
BACKGROUND: 
Attached are the end-of-the-year site plan reports for Millard North, South, West and Horizon High School.  
The principals will be on hand to give you a brief summary of their plan and answer any questions you may 
have.   
 
All schools are on a cycle for site planning.  This cycle allows us to allocate resources to help facilitate their 
school site planning process.  This cycle is planned in conjunction with the North Central Accreditation (NCA) 
school improvement cycle.  The NCA has accepted our strategic and site planning process as our school 
improvement process so we no longer have to run two systems.  The attached site plan reports are descriptions 
of the individual site plans and a summary of school improvement meetings.   
 
Schools follow the same basic schedule that the district follows in strategic planning.  They meet to write a 
plan, form action teams, work for 3-4 months to develop action plans, and then meet again to approve those 
action plans.  Schools implement plans over 4 years.  Schools write a plan, implement the plan the next year 
then update the plan the following year.  This is one way we align all site plans with district plans.  You will 
notice that mission statements and objectives are all aligned with the district mission and objectives.   
 
The attached reports identify the school improvement team members from each school.  The report also lists the 
mission, objectives and strategies for the building.  Each report also highlights action plans for each strategy.  
The last section of the report lists consensus items on major decisions for the school including things like 
schedule, calendar decisions, parent/teacher conferences and the allocation of building resources.  Our system 
of support for sites includes training CADRE Associates Jane Pille and Chris Wilcoxen to facilitate planning 
and updates as needed.  This process is outlined in policy 10,000 and rule 10,000.1.  The policy and rule are 
reviewed every other year.     
 
OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: For information only 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Mission, Objectives and Policy 10,000   
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: None 
 
TIMELINE: As listed 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 

115

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125


	Board Packet December 20, 2010
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes December 6, 2010
	Financials
	H.1. Approval of Board Members to attend the NSBA Federal Relations Network (FRN) Conference
	H.2. Approval to Delete Policy 3240 - Business - Land Transfer to and from the School District
	Policy 3240
	State Statutes
	H.3. Approval to Delete Rule 3240.1 - Business - Land Transfer Into or Out of the School District 
	Rule 3240.1
	H.4. First Reading Policy 3510 - Support Services - Operations - Security - Locks
	Policy 3510
	H.5. First Reading of Policy 3517 - Business - Injury Prevention Program
	Policy 3517
	H.6. Approval of Rule 5400.3 - Pupil Services - Discipline of Students under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
	Rule 5400.3
	H.7. Reaffirm Policy 5480 - Pupil Services - Search and Seizure
	Policy 5480
	H.8. Reaffirm rule 5480.1 - Pupil Services - Search and Seizure
	Rule 5480.1
	H.9. Reaffirm Rule 5480.2 - Pupil Services - Searches by Sniffer Dogs
	Rule 5480.2
	H.10. Approval of Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of Absence, Voluntary Separation Plan, Retirement Notification Incentive Program, and New Hire(s)
	Leave of Absence
	Voluntary Separation Program
	Resignation Notification Incentive
	New Hire
	I.1. Risk Management Report
	I.2. Building Site Plans
	Millard North
	Millard South
	Millard West
	Millard Horizon



